
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Adoption  

The 2014-2015 Annual Report was adopted at the Quilpie 

Shire Council Ordinary Meeting, 15 February 2016 in 

accordance with the Queensland Local Government Act 

2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012 S182.  

Questions about the Report? 

If you would like any further information about the Quilpie 

Shire Council 2014-2015 Annual Report please contact 

Council on 07 4656 0500 or email 

admin@quilpie.qld.gov.au.  

Legislative Requirements  

The administrative practices of Quilpie Shire Council are 

primarily governed by the Queensland Local Government 

Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012. Under 

this legislation, Council is required to prepare and adopt 

an Annual Report for each financial year reporting against 

the Shire’s progress with reference to its Corporate and 

Operational plans. 

 

 

Quilpie Shire Council 

50 Brolga Street 

PO Box 57 

QUILPIE  QLD  4480 

 

P: 07 4656 0500 

F: 07 4656 1441 

E: admin@quilpie.qld.gov.au 

W: www.quilpie.qld.gov.au 
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We cherish our lifestyle and the uniqueness of our community. 

We value inclusion and meaningful participation in the community and are 

committed to strengthening all we value to ensure our future is sustainable. 

Responsible visionary 

leadership 

Open and honest 

communications 

Working closely with the 

community to achieve our 

vision 

Economic responsibility 

Our Foundations 

 

 

 

 

Communication Objectives 
Quilpie Shire Council is pleased to present its 2014-2015 Annual Report and has taken this opportunity 

to reflect on the year.  Whilst the production of the Annual Report is a legislative requirement of the 

Local Government Act 2009, it is also the opportunity to highlight our performance and 

achievements as well as outline our strategic direction and plans for the future.    

Copies of this Annual Report are available free of charge electronically on the Council’s website at 

www.quilpie.qld.gov.au 

 

  



Page | 4 

 

Our Council 
 

In this section: 

 Mayor’s Review 

 Chief Executive Officer’s Report 

 Councillors 

 Council Meetings 

 Organisational Structure 



Page | 5 

 

Mayor’s Review 
 

The 2014-15 year has been a challenging year for the Quilpie Shire with 

economic activity dragged down by the continuing drought and the 

slowdown in the Resource Sector.  Quilpie Shire has been drought 

declared for two years with no signs of that status changing. It has 

been a bullish year for rural commodities generally with record prices 

seen for beef and wool but most producers in the shire struggled to 

take advantage of this situation due to ever decreasing livestock 

numbers. Coupled with a downturn in the oil and gas sector generally, 

it has been a flat year for our business community. 

A more positive story for the shire was the completion of a significant 

capital works program by Council. The $2M Kyabra Road sealing upgrade was 

completed on time and within budget and was a reflection of a better organised and more efficient 

workforce than was previously the case. The $820,000 construction of the first stage of the 

Eromanga Natural History Museum also went well, being completed on time and within budget. This 

project also created a lot of economic benefits for many businesses in the shire. This facility is 

planning to open in March 2016 and should be a real attraction for potential visitors to the Shire. 

The industrial sub-division just west of Quilpie was also constructed with power, water and a sealed 

access road supplied to 10 blocks ranging from 2.0 to 4.5 Ha. The first development to occur in this 

industrial area is the new Council depot and workshop which will commence construction in 2015-16.  

A substantial amount of flood damage work was carried out on our shire roads over the 12 months 

providing much needed roadwork for the shire’s earthmoving contractors and Council crews alike. 

This program has been well managed by the Proterra Group and has been rolled out well especially 

as there have been some major challenges regarding the accessing of water in such dry times. The 

program should be finalised in early 2016. 

The tourism season was a strong one with visitor numbers slowly building year to year. Some 

businesses did report slower spending however, as the prevailing lack of confidence across the 

country impacts on people’s willingness to open their wallets. More and more though the 

importance of tourism becomes apparent, especially when our other industries are experiencing a 

downturn.  

Quilpie Council is still in a strong financial position and will continue to invest in our shire in a 

measured and responsible manner, helping to alleviate some of the economic downturn due to the 

lack of investment from the private sector. In these challenging times it is critical that the Local 

Government takes a lead in investing and instilling confidence in our community. 

Once again Council staff have shown great endeavour and a gradual path of improvement over the 

last 12 months culminating in a successful year. We look forward to continuing that positive 

management of the shire over the future years. 

Cr Stuart Mackenzie                   

mayor@quilpie.qld.gov.au 
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report 
 

The 2014-15 year was, I believe, a challenging but successful year for 

Council. Flood damage in February 2014 has seen another round of flood 

damage funding awarded and crews and contractors are working in 

earnest to complete repairs.  The challenge now and into the future is to 

maintain our road network to this standard. 

Council also completed a significant capital works program including a 

$2M sealing upgrade for Kyabra Road.  Construction of Stage 1 of the 

Natural History Museum and the long awaited introduction of mobile 

phone coverage for the Eromanga district were highlights, able to be 

completed due to successful funding applications under the State 

Government “Royalties for the Regions” program. 

Council has continued to maintain and improve numerous community 

facilities and offer support to the community through various grants and subsidies.  

2014-15 saw the retirement of a number of long term employees.  With a cumulative total of 76 years 

of service by four staff members (3 in the administration area), we took the opportunity to carefully 

consider and review our staff structure to identify ways to streamline some of our operations. 

Council continues to operate in a very tight fiscal environment with funding from both State and 

Federal Governments continuing to tighten. Despite this our financial position remains very solid and 

allows Council to undertake some of the major activities and programs listed above. 

I look forward with anticipation to the coming year as the plans and aspirations of the past year 

come to fruition and addressing the many challenges that continue to face rural and remote 

communities. 

In closing I would like to thank the Mayor and Councillors for their support and guidance to the 

organisation over the past year and to thank all staff for their efforts and dedication in achieving the 

many successes we have enjoyed. 

Mr Dave Burges 

ceo@quilpie.qld.gov.au 

 

ceo@quilpie.qld.gov.au 

  

mailto:ceo@quilpie.qld.gov.au
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Councillors 

 Cr Jennifer Hewson 

Deputy Mayor 

jhewson@quilpie.qld.gov.au 

 

 

 

 

 

Cr Tony Lilburne 

Councillor 

tlilburne@quilpie.qld.gov.au 

 

 Cr Stewart Sargent 

Councillor 

ssargent@quilpie.qld.gov.au 

 Cr Milan Milosevic 

Councillor 

mmilosevic@quilpie.qld.gov.au 

 

 

mailto:jhewson@quilpie.qld.gov.au
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Council Meetings 
Ordinary Meetings of the Quilpie Shire Council are held the second Tuesday of each month in the 

Quilpie Shire Boardroom, commencing at 9:30am. 

The dates and times of meetings other than special meetings are fixed in accordance with the Local 

Government Act and Regulations. 

The Chief Executive Officer must call a special meeting if: 

 There is a prior Council resolution specifying that the meeting will be held 

 The Chief Executive Officer has identified an urgent matter that needs to be decided before 

the next scheduled Ordinary Council meeting 

 A written request has been received by the Chief Executive Officer which has been signed by 

the Mayor and two other Councillors and states a particular matter(s) to be discussed. 

All meetings are open to the public, unless Council resolves, under Section 274 of the Local 

Government Regulation 2012, that the meeting be closed whilst discussion takes place “in 

confidence” regarding specific issues such as staff, legal or industrial proceedings and contracts.  

 

Organisational Structure 
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Legislative 
Requirements 
 

In this section: 

 Councillor Remuneration 

 Councillor Travel 

 Administrative Action Complaints 

 Registers 

 Reserves and Controlled Roads 

 Invitation for Changes to Tenders 

 Rating Concessions 

 Grants to Community Organisations 

 Internal Audit 

 Particular Resolutions 

 Councillor Expenses Reimbursement Policy 
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Councillor Remuneration 
Councillors attend various committee meetings or training workshops routinely throughout the year. 

The Council is governed by the Local Government Act 2009 and by a Councillor Code of Conduct. 

The Local Government Remuneration Tribunal determines rates of pay for Councillors.  Council has 

resolved to adopt the following rates: -  

Councillor Remuneration – 1 July 2014  

Resolution No: (11-02-14) 

Moved by: Cr Sargent 

Seconded by: Cr Lilburne 

That Council adopt the following elected member remuneration, effective from 1 July 2014: 

Mayor $84,838 

Deputy Mayor $36,358 

Councillors $12,928 plus a meeting fee of $1,077 per monthly meeting. 

5/0 

 

Councillor Remuneration and Superannuation  

Councillor Gross Payment 
Travel 

Expenses 
Superannuation 

Total 

Remuneration ($) 

Cr CA Mackenzie 84,838 12,727 10,181 107,745 

Cr JC Hewson 36,358 
 

4,363 40,721 

Cr SC Sargent 25,852 3,482 3,102 32,436 

Cr AM Lilburne 25,852 
 

3,102 28,954 

Cr MC Milosevic 25,852 
 

3,102 28,954 

TOTAL 238,810 
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Councillor Meeting Attendance  

 Ordinary 

Meeting 

Special 

Meeting 

Council 

Workshop 

Other Total 

Cr SA Mackenzie 12  3 57 72 

Cr JC Hewson 11  2 23 36 

Cr SC Sargent 12 1 3 16 32 

Cr AM Lilburne 12 1 3 13 29 

Cr MS Milosevic 12 1 3 10 26 

 

Councillor Complaints, Orders and Recommendations 

 No orders or recommendations were made under section 180 (Taking Disciplinary Action) of the 

Local Government Act 2009 during the financial year. 

  No orders were made under section 181 (Inappropriate Conduct) of the Local Government Act 

2009 during the financial year. 

 No complaints were received about the conduct or performance of Councillors for which no 

further action was taken under section 176 of the Local Government Act 2009 during the financial 

year. 

Discretionary Funds 

Councillors do not have any discretionary funds. 

Public Sector Ethics Act 1994 

 Section 15 – Preparation of codes of conduct 

Council has developed a code of conduct for Councillors and a code of conduct for staff.  

 Section 21 – Education and training 

Council ensures all staff members are aware of and understand their rights and obligations under the 

Code of Conduct through its induction program.  

 Section 22 – Procedures and practices of public sector entities 

All of Council’s procedures and practices demonstrate Council’s commitment to the ethical principles 

and obligations of the Public Sector Ethics Act 1994. 
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Remuneration – Senior Management Employees 

During the 2014-2015 financial year Quilpie Shire Council initially had five (5) senior management 
positions. Following a staffing restructure this was reduced to four (4).  

 1 senior management employee with a total remuneration package in the range of  

$200,000 - $299,000 per annum 

 3 senior management employees with a total remuneration package in the range of $100,000 to 

$199,999 per annum 

 

Councillor Travel 
Overseas Travel 

During the 2014-2015 financial year no Councillor or Council employee travelled overseas in an official 
capacity. 

 

Administrative Action Complaints 
The complaints management process is established with the following objectives: 

The fair, efficient and consistent treatment of complaints about decisions and other administrative 

actions of the Council; 

A complaints management process that is easy to understand and is readily accessible to all; 

Detection and rectification, where appropriate, of administrative errors; 

Identification of areas for improvement in the Council’s administrative practices; 

Increase in awareness of the complaints management process for the Council’s staff and the 

community; 

Enhancement of the community’s confidence in the complaints management process and the 

reputation of the Council as being accountable and transparent; 

Building the capacity of staff to effectively manage complaints in an environment of continuous 

improvement; 

Complaints will be acknowledged and resolved in a timely manner; 

Council will manage complaints confidentially and ensure that complainants do not suffer any form 

of reprisal for making a complaint; 

Council will abide by the principles of natural justice and procedural fairness when dealing with 

complaints. 
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Council’s implementation of its Complaints Management Process and 

Assessment 

Council is committed to dealing with administrative action complaints fairly and has reviewed and 

adopted the amended policy on 8 April 2014. Council’s Complaints Management policy and process is 

available on Council’s website and at the Administration office. 

Number of Administrative Complaints made, resolved by Council, not 

resolved by Council and complaints not resolved in the previous year.  

Number of administrative action complaints made to Council 4 

Number of administrative action complaints resolved by Council 

(Under complaints management process) 

4 

Number of administrative action complaints not resolved by Council 

(under complaints management process) 

Nil 

Number of administrative action complaints not resolved by Council in the previous year Nil 

Complaints and Investigations into Business Activities  

During the year Council did not have any nominated business activities. 

 

Registers 
Council is required to keep and make available for public inspection certain documents. These 

documents are available from the Quilpie Shire Council Office and include: 

 Investment Register 

 Register of Local Planning Policies 

 Register of Delegations of Authority by Council 

 Register of Delegations of Authority by the CEO 

 Register of Policies 

 Register of Roads 

 Contract Register 

 Register of Legal Documents 

 Register of Fees and Charges 

 Building Application Register 

 Cemetery Register 

 Code of Conduct 

 Register of Interest of Councillors   

 Register of Disclosure of Electoral Gifts and Loans 

 Local Laws and Subordinate Local Laws Register 

 Register of Burials 

 Register of Lands 
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Reserves and Controlled Roads 
 Quilpie Shire Council has control of 345 square kilometres of land that are reserves under the 

Land Act 1994. This land does not have a value for Council’s Financial Statements. 

 Council does not control any roads it does not own. 

 

Invitations for Changes to Tenders 
 During the 2014-15 financial year there were no instances where tenderers were invited to change 

their tenders. 

 

Rating Concessions 
In accordance with Sections 119 and 120 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 Council offers a 
concession of 50% up to $450 on rates and utility charges to recipients of Aged, Disability and 
Widows Pensions and holders of Veteran Affairs cards in accordance with Council’s Pensioner Rate 
Concession Policy. 

 

Grants to Community Organisations 
During the 2014-15 financial year Council provided the following grants or in-kind support to 
organisations: 
 

Grants Value ($) 

Scholarship/Bursary Program 6,500 

Community Grants Program 41,969 

Community Development Grant - Eromanga 10,230 

Community Development Grant - Adavale 24,456 

TOTAL 83,155 

 

Internal Audit 
Council engaged the services of O’Regan and Partners to perform the internal audit activities for the 
2014-15 financial year. The internal auditor works with management to identify and implement 
recommended improvements to Council’s operations, systems and processes and ensure compliance 
with adopted procedures. 
 
In accordance with section 190(h) of the Local Government Regulation 2009, the internal audit 
report for 2014-15 is presented: 
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During the first visit of the Internal Auditor in October 2014 work focussed on the development of an 
Internal Audit Plan, initiating internal audit control works and attending both the Ordinary Meeting 
of Council and the initial Audit Committee meeting. 
 
A detailed internal audit report was issued as a result of work undertaken during a visit to Council 
premises during the week ending 24th April 2015.  Work during this visit covered a number of areas 
which were discussed with Council staff during the course of the visit. 
 
The areas covered and reported on were as follows: 

 Community and Council Housing 

 Credit Card usage 

 Private Works 

 Floating Plant and Loose Tools 

 Sundry Matter - NDRRA Tenders 
 
Some other sundry issues were discussed with staff at that visit and relevant advice and comments 
provided at the time, however these were not considered of high enough importance to warrant 
inclusion in the formal written advice and recommendations subsequently presented to the Chief 
Executive Officer. 
 

Non-Current Physical Assets 
Council made no resolution in accordance with section 206(2) of the Local Government Regulation 
2012 in the 2014-15.  The following amounts for each different type of non-current asset below which 
the value of an asset of the same type will be treated as an expense (the recognition threshold) 
remain as: 
 

Type of Assets Value ($) 

Furniture and Fittings                     5,000.00 

Plant and Equipment                      5,000.00 

Buildings and other structures      10,000.00 

Infrastructure assets                       10,000.00 

Land 1.00 

These amounts are disclosed in Note 1.O of the financial statements. 

 

Councillor Expenses Reimbursement 
Policy 
There was no amendment to the Councillor Expenses Reimbursement Policy in 2014-15.  The 

current policy was adopted in April 2014. 
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Progress and 
Performance 
 

In this section: 

 Assessment Of Performance In Implementing Corporate And Operational Plans 
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Assessment of Performance in 
Implementing Corporate and Operational 
Plans 
In accordance with section 190(1)(a) of the Local Government Regulation 2012 the annual report 

must contain an assessment by the Chief Executive Officer of the local government’s progress 

towards implementing its 5-year Corporate Plan and annual Operational Plan. 

Council’s Corporate Plan is the primary strategic business and organisational planning document and 

forms the basis of Council’s annual Operational Plan. The plan translates our community’s needs, 

expectations and aspirations into action. It sets the overall direction of the organisation and acts as a 

primary guide in decision making. 

The Operational Plan sets out Council’s work program for the financial year including costs, timelines 

and outcomes. The Operational Plan is reviewed quarterly and at all times remains consistent with 

the Corporate Plan. 

Quilpie Shire Council continued to make strong progress towards implementing its 5-year (2012-2017) 

Corporate Plan.   

Council continues to proactively liaise and collaborate with its neighbouring and other regional 

Councils to achieve our longer term outcomes.  Meetings with State and Federal Government 

representatives are pursued at each opportunity where policy decisions at other levels of 

government may have a significant impact to our communities.  Staff training and development 

programs continue and a focus on community engagement and communication continues to 

increase the ability of the community to participate in the decision making processes. 

More specifically, maintenance and capital works items programmed for 2014-15 were completed in a 

timely manner.  Key outcomes for 2014-15 included: 

Strong progress in data collection for the development and implementation of an asset 

management improvement plan 

 Initiation of road opening for Hell Hole Gorge access 

 Stage 1 Eromanga Natural History Museum completed 

 War History Museum established 

 Electronic Records Management System implemented across Council 

 Eromanga Mobile Phone coverage project completed 

 Kyabra Road upgrade completed 

 Quilpie Industrial Subdivision completed 

 Major flood damage program underway 
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Community 
Financial Report 
 

In this section: 

 Community Financial Report 

 Financial Statements 
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Community Financial Report 
This Community Financial Report is a summary and analysis of the Council’s financial performance 

and position for the financial year 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015. The use of graphs is intended to make 

it easier for readers to understand Council’s financial management and performance. 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

This Statement of Comprehensive Income displays Council’s performance in relation to revenue and 

expenditure during the financial year. 

Revenue – Where our money comes from… 

Council obtains revenue from a variety of sources.  The best known is Rates which raised $3,980,736 

for the year (net of discount and rebates) but this is only 14% if the total revenue. 

Other major sources of revenue are works carried out for Main Roads (included in Sales Revenue) 

which totalled $3,560,927 or 13% of total revenue and reimbursement for flood damage works 

conducted on Councils own roads (included in recurrent grants) totalling $8,197,530 or 29% of total 

revenue.  Financial assistance grants from the Commonwealth Government totalled $4,731,225 or 17% 

of the total. 

Total Revenue - $28,056,512 

 

 

Expenditure – where our money goes… 

Employee benefits of $5,095,780 represent 26% of total expense and includes wages actually paid, 

leave accrued and Councillors remuneration. 

Materials and Services at $11,463,899 is by far the largest component of expenses at 59% of the total 

with payments to contractors the largest items. 
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Depreciation comprising just 14% of total expenses, is the recognition of consumption and wear and 

tear on Council’s assets. 

Result was a net gain of $6.7 million caused by revenue received for work done in the previous year 

and work to be done. 

Total Expenditure - $19,307,895 
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Statement of Financial Position 

The Statement of Financial Position shows what Council owns (assets) and owes (Liabilities) at the 

end of the financial year.  Assets less liabilities are the net wealth of Council which is the net wealth 

of the Community. 

Current Assets have increased over the course of the year due to money received for work done in 

the previous year and yet to be done. 

Non - Current Assets increased by $24 million due to almost entirely to revaluation of assets.  

 

Total Assets - $168,139,450 

 

Cash and cash equivalents  $  14,963,260 

Trade and other receivables  $        775,849 

Inventories    $        399,405 

Other financial assets   $          67,261 

Property, plant and equipment $151,933,674 

Total Assets    $168,139,450 
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Liabilities 

Council’s liabilities consist of trade and other payables (amounts owed to suppliers) and provisions 

(amounts owed to employees for leave entitlements). 

Liabilities have reduced due to the departure of some long term employees and a lower level of 

outstanding creditors.                   

Total Liabilities - $2,758,608 

 

Trade and other payables  $2,393,094 

Provisions Current   $    273,740 

Provisions Non Current  $      91,774 

Total Liabilities   $2,758,608 
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Community Equity 

Community equity equals total assets (what we own) minus total liabilites (what we owe) and 

consists of the asset revaluation surplus and retained suplus.   

The revaluation of assets (almost $22 million) plus the surplus from operations ($6.7 million) 

accounted for the bulk of the increase in equity. 

Total Community Equity - $165,380,842 

 

 

 

 

  

$84,988,073 

$80,392,769 Asset revaluation surplus

Retained surplus
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Financial Statements 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 
Note $ 

Income 
Revenue 

Recurrent revenue 
Rates, levies and charges 3(a) 3,980,736 
Fees and charges 3(b) 100,791 
Rental income 3(c) 394,161 
Interest received 3(d) 386,540 
Sales revenue 3(e) 3,560,927 
Other income 3(f) 112,561 
Grants, subsidies. contributions and donations 4(a) 17,501 ,483 

Total revenue 26,037,198 

Expenses 
Recurrent expenses 
Employee benefits 6 (5,095,780) 
Materials and services 7 (11 ,463,899) 
Finance costs 8 (5,834) 
Depreciation and amortisation 9 (2,742,382~ 

Total recurrent expenses (19,307,895) 

Net Recurrent Income 2(b) 6,729,303 

Capital Income 
Capital revenue 

Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 4(b) 2,433,065 
Capital expenses 

Loss on disposal of assets 5 (357,274} 
Loss on revaluation 10 (56,478) 
Net Capital Income 2,019,313 

Net result 8,748,616 

Other comprehensive income 
Items that will not be reclassified to net result 

Increase in asset revaluation surplus 19 21,800,580 

Total other comprehensive income for the year 21,800,580 

Total comprehensive income for the year 30,549,196 

2014 
$ 

3,350,084 
38,038 

362,691 
376,778 

10,184,944 
58,707 

17,601,603 
31 ,972,845 

(5,299,143) 
(27,317,492} 

(5,984} 
(2,532,625~ 

(35, 155,244) 

(3,182,399) 

1,257,858 

(85,385) 

1,172,473 

(2,009,926) 

(2,009,926) 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Significant 
Accounting Policies. 

Page2 



QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Statement of Financial Position 

as at 30 June 2015 

2015 2014 
Note $ $ 

Current assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 11 14,963,260 9,738,238 
Trade and other receivables 12 708,349 1,223,086 
Inventories 13 399,405 478,857 
Other financial assets 14 67,261 
Total current assets 16,138,275 11 ,440,181 

Non-current assets 
Trade and other receivables 12 67,500 
Property, plant and equipment 15 151,933,674 127,003,040 
Total non-current assets 152,001 ,175 127,003,040 

Total assets 168,139,450 138,443,221 

Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 17 2,393,094 3,122,158 
Provisions 18 273,740 336,702 
Total current liabilities 2,666,834 3,458,860 

Non-current liabilities 
Provisions 18 91.n4 152,715 
Total non-current liabilities 91 ,774 152,715 

Total liabilities 2,758,608 3,611,575 

Net community assets 165' 380' 842 134,831,646 

Community equity 
Asset revaluation surplus 19 84,988,073 63,187,493 
Retained surplus 20 80,392,769 71 ,644,153 

Total community equity 165,380,842 134,831,646 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and 
Significant Accounting Policies. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Statement of Changes in Equity 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Asset Accumulated 

Note 

Balance as at 1 July 2014 

Net operating surplus 
Other comprehensive income for the year 

Increase in asset revaluation surplus 

revaluation 
surplus 

19 
$ 

63,187,493 

21 ,800,580 

Total comprehensive income for the year 21,800,580 

Surplus 

20 
$ 

71 ,644,153 

8,748,616 

8,748,616 

Total 

$ 

134,831 ,646 

8,748,616 

21,800,580 

30,549,196 -------------------------------
Balance as at 30 June 2015 84,988,073 80,392,769 165,380,842 

Balance as at 1 July 2013 63,187 ,493 73,654,079 136,841,572 

Net operating surplus (2,009,926) (2,009,926) 

Total comprehensive income for the year (2,009,926) (2,009,926) 

Balance as at 30 June 2014 63,187,493 71,644,153 134,831,646 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and 
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Statement of Cash Flows 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Cash flows from operating activities 
Receipts from customers 
Payments to suppliers and employees 

Interest received 
Rental income 
Non capital grants and contributions 
Net cash Inflow from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 
Payments for property, plant and equipment 
Net movement in loans and advances 

Note 

24 

Proceeds from safe of property plant and equipment 
Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities 

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 
equivalent held 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning 
of the financial year 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the 
financial year 

11 

2015 
$ 

2014 
$ 

8,253,337 15,811 ,712 
(17,386, 126) -----:'~32~,2;:;.:6:-::-6~,2~62~) 
(9,132,789) (16,454,550) 

386,540 376,778 
394,161 362,691 

17,501,483 17,601,603 
9,149,395 1,886,522 

(6,471 ,826) 
(71 ,250) 
185,639 

2,433,065 
(3,924,373) 

5,225,022 

9,738,238 

14,963,260 

(4,858,968) 

345,955 
1,257,858 

(3,255,155) 

(1 ,368,633) 

11,106,871 

9,738,238 

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes and Summary of 
Significant Accounting Policies. 
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1 Significant accounting policies 

1.A Basis of preparation 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

These general purpose financial statements are for the period 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 and have been prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and the Local Government Regulation 2012 . 
Consequently, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all Australian Accounting Standards, 
Australian Accounting Interpretations and other authoritative pronouncements issued by the Australian Accounting Standards 
Board. 
These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the following: 

-financial assets and liabilities, certain ciasses of property, plant and equipment which are measured at fair value; 

Recurrent/capital classification 
Revenue and expenditure are presented as "recurrent" or "capital" in the Statement of Comprehensive Income on the following 
basis: 

Capital Revenue includes grants and subsidies received which are tied to specifiC projects for the replacement or upgrade of 
existing non-current assets and/or investment in new assets. 

The following transactions are classified as either "Capital Income" or "Capital Expenses" depending on whether they result in 
accounting gains or losses: 

- disposal of non-current assets 
- revaluations of property, plant and equipment. 

All other revenue and expenses have been classified as "recurrent". 

1.8 Statement of compliance 
These general purpose financial statements comply with all accounting standards and interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to Council's operations and effective for the current reporting period. 
Because the Council is a not-for-profit entity and the Australian Accounting Standards include requirements for not-for-profit 
entities which are inconsistent with International Financial Reporting Standards (I FRS) , to the extent these inconsistencies are 
applied, these financial statements do not comply with IFRS. The main impacts are the offsetting of revaluation and impairment 
gains and losses within a class of assets, and the timing of the recognition of non-reciprocal g rant revenue. 

1.C Constitution 
The Quilpie Shire Council is constituted under the Queensland Local Government Act 2009 and is domiciled in Australia. 

1.0 Date of authorisation 

The financial statements were authorised for issue on the date they were submitted to the Auditor-General for final signature. 
This is the date the management certificate is signed. 

1.E Currency 
The Council uses the Australian dollar as its functional currency and its presentation currency. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

1.F Adoption of new and revised Accounting Standards 
In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current reporting period. The 
adoption of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations has not resulted in any material changes to Council's accounting 
policies. 

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian 
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) that are relevant to its operations and effective for the current period. Council also decided 
to early adopt the amendments to AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement as issued by AASB 2015-7 Amendments to AAS- Fair Value Disclosures of 
Not for Profit Public Sector Entities. 

AI the date of authorisation of the financial report, AASB 9 Financial Instruments is the only new accounting standard with a 
future application date that is expected to have a material impact on council's financial statements. 

AASB 9, which replaces AASB 139 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement , is effective for reporting periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018 and must be applied retrospectively. The main impact of AASB 9 is to change the 
requirements for the classification, measurement and disclosures associated with financial assets. Under the new requirements 
the four current categories of financial assets stipulated in AASB 139 will be replaced with two measurement categories: fair 
value and amortised cost and financial assets will only be able to be measured at amortised cost where very specifiC conditions 
are met. 

As a resuH, Council will be required to measure its financial assets at fair value. As Council has always measured financial 
assets at fair value, there would be no change had this requirement been adopted at 30 June 2015. 
Due to its recent release, Council is still reviewing the way that revenue is measured and recognised to identify whether AASB 
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers will have a material impact. To date no impact has been identified. 

AASB 15 is effective from 1 January 2017 and will replace AASB 118 Revenue, AASB 111 Construction Contracts and a 
number of Interpretations. It contains a comprehensive and robust framework for the recognition, measurement and disclosure 
of revenue from contracts with customers. 

From 1 July 2016 AASB 124 Related Parly Disclosures will apply to Council. This means that council will disclose more 
information about related parties and transactions with those related parties. Council is currently preparing for this change by 
identifying related parties. Related parties will include the Mayor, councillors and some council staff. In addition the close family 
members of those people and any organisations that they control or are associated with will be dassified as related parties. 

The amended Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations which were issued at the date of authorisation of the 
financial report, but have future commencement dates are not likely to have a material impact on the financial statements. 

Page 7 



QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

1.G Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 
In the application of Council's accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions 
about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ 
from these estimates. The estimates and ongoing assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised and in future periods as relevant. 

Judgements, estimates and assumptions that have a potential significant effect are outlined in the following financial statement 
notes: 
Valuation and depreciation of property, plant and equipment- Note 1.0 and Note 16 
Provisions- Note 1.R and Note 18 

1.H Revenue 
Rates, levies, grants and other revenue are recognised as revenue on receipt of funds o r earlier upon unconditional entitlement 
to the funds. 
Rates and levies 
Where rate monies are received prior to the commencement of the rating/levying period, the amount is recognised as revenue 
in the period in which they are received, otherwise rates are recognised at the commencement of rating period. 
Grants and subsidies 
Grants, subsidies and contributions that are non-reciprocal in nature are recognised as revenue in the year in which Council 
obtains control over them. 
Where grants are received that are r:eciprocal in nature, revenue is recognised as the various performance obligations under the 
funding agreement are fulfilled. Council does not currently have any reciprocal grants. 
Non-cash contributions 
Non-cash contributions with a value in excess of the recognition thresholds, are recognised as revenue and as non-current 
assets. Non-cash contributions below the thresholds are recorded as revenue and expenses. 
Physical assets contributed to Council by developers in the form of road works, stormwater, water and wastewater infrastructure 
and park equipment are recognised as revenue when the development becomes "on maintenance" (i.e. the Council obtains 
control of the assets and becomes liable for any ongoing maintenance) and there is sufficient data in the form of drawings and 
plans to determine the approximate specifications and values of such assets. All non-cash contributions are recognised at the 
fair value of the contribution received on the date of acquisition. 
Cash Contributions 
Developers also pay infrastructure charges for trunk infrastructure, such as pumping stations, treatment works, mains, sewers 
and water pollution control works. These infrastructure charges are not within the scope of AASB Interpretation 18 because 
there is no performance obligation associated with them. Consequently, the infrastructure charges are recognised as income 
when received. 
Rental income 
Rental revenue from investment and other property is recognised as income on a periodic straight line basis over the lease term. 

Interest 
Interest received from term deposits is accrued over the term of the investment. 
Sales revenue 
Sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership are transferred to the buyer, generally when the 
customer has taken undisputed delivery of the goods. 
The council generates revenues from a number of services including contracts for road and earthworks. Revenue from contracts 
and recoverable works generally comprises a recoupment of material costs together with an hourly charge fo r use of equipment 
and employees. Contract revenue and associated costs are recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the contract 
activity at the reporting date. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable in relation to that 
activity. Where consideration is received for the service in advance it is included in other liabilities and is recognised as revenue 
in the period when the service is performed . 
Fees and Charges 
Fees and charges are recognised upon unconditional entitlement to the funds. Generally this is upon lodgement of the relevant 
applications or documents, issuing of the infringement notice or when the service is provided. 

Page 8 



QUilPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

1.1 Financial assets and financial liabilities 
Council recognises a financial asset or a financial liability in its Statement of Financial Position when, and only when, Council 
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. 
Quilpie Shire Council has categorised and measured the financial assets and financial liabilities held at balance date as follows: 

Financial assets 
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 1.J) 
Receivables- measured at amortised cost (Note 1.K) 
Other financial assets - measured at cost (Note 1.M) 
Financial liabilities 
Payables - measured at amortised cost (Note 1.Q) 
Borrowings - measured at amortised cost (Note 1.S) 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are presented separately from each other and offsetting has not been applied. 
All other disclosures relating to the measurement and financial risk management of financial instruments are included in Note 
26. 

1.J Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, all cash and cheques receipted but not banked at the year end, deposits 
held at call with financial institutions, other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less 
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and 
bank overdrafts. 

1.K Receivables 
Trade receivables are recognised at the.amounts due at the time of sale or service delivery i.e. the agreed purchase price I 
contract price. Settlement of these amounts is required within 30 days from invoice date. 
The collectability of receivables is assessed periodically and if there is objective evidence that Council will not be able to collect 
all amounts due, the carrying amount is reduced for impairment The loss is recognised in finance costs. The amount of the 
impairment is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated cash flows discounted 
at the effective interest rate. 

All k:nown bad debts were written-off at 30 June. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off in the same period 
are recognised as finance costs in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. If an amount is recovered in a subsequent period 
it is recognised as revenue. 
Because Council is empowered under the provisions of the LoeB/ Government Act 2009 to sell an owner's property to recover 
outstanding rate debts, Council does not impair any rate receivables. 
Loans and advances are recognised in the same way as other receivables. Terms are usually a maximum of five years with 
interest charged at commercial rates. Security is not normally obtained. 

1.L Inventories 
Inventories held for distribution are: 
-goods to be supplied at no or nominal charge, and 
- goods to be used for the provision of services at no or nominal, charge. 
These goods are valued at cost, adjusted, when applicable, for any loss of service potential. 
Land acquired by Council with the intention of reselling it (with or without further development) is classified as inventory. This 
land is valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. As an inventory item, this land held for resale is treated as a current 
asset. Proceeds from the sale of this land will be recognised as sales revenue on the signing of a valid unconditional contract of 
sale. 

1.M Other financial assets 
Other financial assets are recognised at cost. 

1.N Investments 
Term deposits in excess of three months are reported as investments, with deposits of less than three months being reported as 
cash equivalents. At 30 June 2015 Council did not have any term deposits in excess of three months. 
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1.0 Property, plant and equipment 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Each class of property, plant and equipment is stated at cost or fair value less, where applicable, any accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment loss. Items of plant and equipment with a total value of less than $5,000, and infrastructure assets 
and buildings with a total value of less than $10 ,000 are treated as an expense in the year of acquisition. All other items of 
property, plant and equipment are capitalised. 
The classes of property, plant and equipment recognised by the Council are: 
Land 
Buildings 
Furniture & Fittings 
Plant and Equipment 
Infrastructure 

Road, drainage and bridge network 
Water 
Sewerage 

Other infrastructure 
Acquisition of assets 
Acquisitions of assets are initially recorded at cost. Cost is determined as the fair value of the assets given as consideration 
plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including freight in, architect's fees and engineering design fees and all other · 
establishment costs. 
Property, plant and equipment received in the form of contributions, are recognised as assets and revenues at fair value by 
Council valuation where that value exceeds the recognition thresholds for the respective asset class. Fair value is the price that 
would be received to sell the asset in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. 
Capital and operating expenditure 
Direct labour and materials and an appropriate proportion of oncosts incurred in the acquisition or construction of assets are 
treated as capital expenditure. Assets under construction are not depreciated until they are completed and commissioned , at 
which time they are reclassified from work in progress to the appropriate property, plant and equipment class. 
Routine operating maintenance, repair costs and minor renewals to maintain the operational capacity and useful life of the non-
current asset are expensed as incurred, while expenditure that relates to replacement of a major component of an asset to 
maintain its service potential is capitalised. 
Expenditure incurred in accordance with Natural Disaster Relief and Recovery Arrangements on road assets is analysed to 
determine whether the expenditure is capital in nature. The analysis of the expenditure requ ires Council engineers to review the 
nature and extent of expenditure on a given asset. For example, expenditure that patches a road is generally maintenance in 
nature, whereas a kerb to kerb rebuild is treated as capital. Material expenditure that extends the useful life or renews the 
service potential of the asset is capitalised. 
Valuation 
Land and improvements, buildings, and all infrastructure assets are measured on the revaluation basis, at fair value , in 
accordance with AASB 116 Property, Plant & Equipment and AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement . Other plant and equipment 
and work in progress are measured at cost. 

Non-current physical assets measured at fair value are revalued, where required, so that the carrying amount of each class of 
asset does not materially differ from its fair value at the reporting date. This is achieved by engaging independent, professionally 
qualified valuers to determine the fair value for each class of property, plant and equipment assets at least once every 3 years. 
This process involves the valuer physically sighting a representative sample of Council assets across all asset classes and 
making their own assessments of the condition of the assets at the date of inspection. 
In the intervening years, Council uses internal engineers and asset managers to assess the condition and cost assumptions 
associated with all infrastructure assets, the results of which are considered in ·combination with an appropriate cost index for 
the region. Together these are used to form the basis of a management valuation fo r infrastructure asset c lasses in each of the 
intervening years. With respect to the valuation of the land and improvements, buildings and major plant asset classes in the 
intervening years, management engage independent, professionally qualified valuers to perform a "desktop" valuation. A 
desktop valuation involves management providing updated information to the valuer regarding additions, deletions and changes 
in assumptions such as useful life, residual value and condition rating. The valuer then determines suitable indices which are 
applied to each of these asset classes. 
An analysis performed by management has indicated that, on average, the variance between an indexed asset value and the 
valuation by an independent valuer when performed is not significant and the indices used by Council are sound. Further details 
in relation to valuers, the methods of valuatior. and the key assumptions used are disclosed in Note 16. · 
Any revaluation increment arising on the revaluation of an asset is credited to the appropriate class of the asset revaluation 
surplus, except to the extent it reverses a revaluation decrement for the class previously recognised as an expense. A decrease 
in the carrying amount on revaluation is charged as an expense to the extent it exceeds the balance, if any, in the revaluation 
surplus of that asset class. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the f inancial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

On revaluation, accumulated depreciation is restated proportionately with the change in the carrying amount ofthe asset and 
any change in the estimate of remaining useful life. 
Separately identified components of assets are measured on the same basis as the assets to which they relate. 
Capital work in progress 
The cost of property, plant and equipment being constructed by the Council indudes the cost of purchased services, materials, 
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of labour oncosts. 
Depreciation 
Land is not depreciated as It has an unlimited useful life. Depreciation on other property, plant and equipment assets is 
calculated on a straight-line basis so as to write-off the net cost or revalued amount of each depreciable asset, less its estimated 
residual value where appropriate, progressively over its estimated useful life to the Council. Management believes that the 
straight-line basis appropriately reflects the pattern of consumption of all Council assets. 
Assets are depreciated from the date of acquisition or, in respect of internally constructed assets, from the time an asset is 
completed and commissioned ready for use. 
Where assets have separately identifiable components that are subject to regular replacement, these components are assigned 
useful lives distinct from the asset to which they relate. Any expenditure that increases the originally assessed capacity or 
service potential of an asset is capitalised and the new depreciable amount is depreciated over the remaining useful life of the 
asset to the Council. 
Major spares purchased specifically for particular assets that are above the asset recognition threshold are capitalised and 
depreciated on the same basis as the asset to which they relate. 
The depreciable amount of improvements to or on leasehold land is allocated progressively over the estimated useful lives of 
the improvements to the Council or the unexpired period of the lease, whichever is the shorter. 
Depreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment assets are reviewed at the 
end of each reporting period and adjusted where necessary to reflect any changes in the pattern of consumption, physical wear 
and tear, technical or commercial obsolescence, or management intentions. The condition assessments performed as part of 
the annual valuation process for assets measured at written down current replacement cost are used to estimate the useful lives 
of these assets at each reporting date. Details of the range of estimated useful lives for each dass of asset are shown in Note 
15. 
Land under roads 
Land under roads acquired before 30 June 2008 is recognised as a non-current asset where the Council holds title or a financial 
lease over the asset The Quilpie Shire Council currently does not have any such land holdings. 

Land under the road network within the Council area that has been dedicated and opened for public use under the Land Act 
1994 or the Land Title Act 1994 is not controlled by council but is controlled by the state pursuant to the relevant legislation. 
Therefore this land is not recognised in these finandal statements. 
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1.P lmpainnent of non-current assets 

QUILPIE SHIRE·CQUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Each non-current physical and intangible asset and group of assets is assessed for indicators of impairment annually. If an 
indicator of possible impairment exists, the Council determines the asset's recoverable amount. Any amount by which the 
asset's carrying amount exceeds the recoverable amount is recorded as an impairment loss. The recoverable amount of an 
asset is the higher of its fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, unless t he asset is carried at a 
revalued amount. When the asset is measured at a revalued amount, the impairment loss is offset against the asset revaluation 
surplus of the relevant class to the extent available. 
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of its 
recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been 
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised 
as income unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a 
revaluation surplus increase. 

1.Q Payables 
Trade creditors are recognised upon receipt of the goods or services ordered and are measured at the agreed 
purchase/contract price net of applicable discounts other than contingent discounts. Amounts owing are unsecured and are 
generally settled on 30 day terms. 

1.R Liabilities. employee benefits 
Liabilities are recognised for employee benefits such as wages and salaries, annual leave and long service leave in respect of 
services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. liabilities for employee benefits are assessed at each reporting 
date. Where it is expected that the leave will be paid in the next twelve months the liability is treated as a current liability. 
Otherwise the liability is treated as non-current. 
Salaries and wages 
A liability for salaries and wages is recognised and measured as the amount unpaid at the reporting date at current pay rates in 
respect of employees' services up to that date. This liability represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 17 as a 
payable. 
Annual leave 
A liability for annual leave is recognised. Amounts expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on current wage and 
salary levels and includes related employee on-costs. Amounts not expected to be settled within 12 months are calculated on 
projected future wage and salary levels and related employee on-costs, and are discounted to present va lues. This liability 
represents an accrued expense and is reported in Note 17 as a payable 
As council does not have an unconditional right to defer this liability beyond 12 months all annual leave is classified as a current 
liability. 
Superannuation 
The superannuation expense for the reporting period is the amount of the contribution the Council makes to the superannuation 
plan which provides benefits to its employees. Details of those arrangements are set out in Note 22 
Long service leave 
A liability for long service leave is measured as the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in respect of 
services provided by employees up to the reporting date. The value of the liability is calculated using current pay rates and 
projected futu re increases in those rates and includes related employee on-costs. The estimates are adjusted for the probability 
of the employee remaining in the Council's employment or other associated employment which would result in the Council being 
required to meet the liability. Adjustments are then· made to allow for the proportion of the benefit earned to date, and the result 
is discounted to present value. The interest rates attaching to Commonwealth Government guaranteed securities at the 
reporting date are used to discount the estimated future cash outflows to their present va lue. This liability is reported in Note 18 
as a provision. 
Where employees have met the prerequisite length of service and council does not have an unconditional right to defer this 
liability beyond 12 months long service leave is classified as a current liability. Otherwise it is classified as non-current. 
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1.S Borrowings and borrowing costs 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition 
these liabilities are measured at amortised cost 
In accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012 council adopts an annual debt policy that sets out council's planned 
borrowings for the next nine years. Council's current policy is to only borrow for capital projects and for a term no longer than 
the expected life ofthe asset. Council also aims to comply with the Queensland Treasury Corporation's borrowing guidelines 
and ensure that sustainability indicators remain within acceptable levels at all times. 
All borrowing costs are expensed in the period In which they are incurred. No borrowing costs are capitalised on qualifying 
assets. 
While Council does not have any borrowings currently, it is Councirs intention to borrow in order to fund establishment of a new 
depot and workshop next year. 

1.T Asset revaluation surplus 
The asset revaluation surplus comprises adjustments relating to changes in value of property, plant and equipment that do not 
result from the use of those assets. Net incremental changes in the carrying value of classes of non-current assets since their 
initial recognition are accumulated in the asset revaluation surplus. 
Increases and decreases on revaluation are offset within a class of assets. 
Where a class of assets is decreased on revaluation, that decrease is offset first against the amount remaining in the asset 
revaluation surplus in respect of that class. Any excess is treated as an expense. 

1.U Retained surplus 
In reference to the comparative figures for the year ended 30 June 2014, this represents the amount of Council's net funds not 
set aside in reserves to meet specific future needs. 

1.V Reserves 
Council's cash and cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal restrictions that limit the amount that is available for 
discretionary or future use. In prior years council accounted for these restrictions using a system of reserves. 
On 19 August 2013, council passed a resolution to close all existing reserves and account for these restrictions using an internal 
management accounting system. Internal restrictions that were placed on councirs cash and cash equivalents were then 
disclosed in other notes 
Due to the failure of the proposed system, Council resolved to reinstate the reserves but continue to report them as cash 
restrictions. The reinstated reserves will work as set out below. 
Future capital works reserve 
When Council identifies a project to be undertaken in the future, it may decide to "put funds aside" to cover the future cost. 
Asset replacement reserve 
Council allocates funds each year for plant replacement. If those funds are not expended the remaining balance is put to this 
reserve. When the funds are subsequently spent, the corresponding amount is taken from the reserve. 
Constrained works reserve 
Where Council receives funds which are conditional upon them being spent in a specific way, they are put to this account until 
they are spent. 

1.W National competition policy 
The Quilpie Shire Council has reviewed its activities to identify its business activities and has determined that there are none. 

1.X Rounding and comparatives 
The financial statements have been rounded to the nearest $1 . 
Comparative information has been restated where necessary to be consistent with disclosures in the current reporting period. 

1.Y Trustfunds held for outside parties 
Funds held in the trust account on behalf of outside parties include those funds from security deposits lodged to guarantee 
performance and unclaimed monies (e.g. wages) paid into the trust account by the Council. The Council performs only a 
custodial role in respect of these monies and because the monies cannot be used for Council purposes, they are not considered 
revenue nor brought to account in the financial statements. 

The monies are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements for information purposes only in Note 23. 
1.Z Taxation 

Income of local authorities and public authorities is exempt from Commonwealth taxation except for Fringe Benefits Tax and 
Goods and Services Tax ('GST'). The net amount of GST recoverable from the ATO or payable to the ATO is shown as an 
asset or liability respectively. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2. Analysis of Results by Function 

2(a) Components of council functions 

The a::!ivities relating to the Ccuncil's components reported on i~ Note 2(b) are as foiiows : 

Corporate governance 
The objective of corporate governance is for Coun::i I to be open. accountable, ~ransparent and deliver value for 
money community outcomes. This function includes strategic and operational planning, Msk management, lega! and 
administrative support. The Mayor, Councillors and Chief Executive Officer are ir.c iuded in corporate governance. 

Finance and information 
Finance and information provides professional finance and information services across all of council This function 
includes internal audit budget support, financial accounting, inoirect taxation and information technology services. 
The goa: of this function is to provide accurate. timely and appropriate information to support sound decisior making 
and meet statutory requirements. 

Community services 
The goa! of community services is to ensure Quilpie Shire is a healthy, vibrant contemporary and connected 
cornm:.mity. Community services provides well managed af'd maintained community facilities, and ensures the 
effective delivery of cultural, health. welfare, environmental and recreations! services. 

This function includes: 
Libraries 
Entertainment venues 
Pub;ic nealth services 
Sporting venues 
Planning and development 

Environmental Health Services 
This program ensures that the community's environment is protected and maintained to acceptable levels. 

Engineering and Works 
The objec:ive of the eng!neering and works program is to ensure the community is serviced by a high quality. 
appropriate and effective road network. T!le function provides and nai ntains transport infrastructure, including the 
maintenance and provision of the drainage network. 

Waste management 
The goal of this function is to protect and support our community and natural environment by sustainably rr.anaging 
refuse. The function provides refuse collection and disposal serv:ces 

Water infrastructure 
The goal of this program is to support a healthy, safe community through sustainable water services. Tris funct'on 
includes all activities relating to water reticulation, treatment and plumbing. 

Sewerage infrastructure 
This function protects and supports the health of our community by sustair.abiy managing sewerage infrastructure. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2 Analysis of results by function 
(bl Income and expenses defined between recuning and capital are attributed to the following functions: 

Year ended 30 June 2015 
Functions 

Corporate Governance 
Finance and information 
Community services 
Environmental Health 
Services 
Engineering & Works 
Waste Management 
Water & Sewerage 
Infrastructure 
Total Council 

L Gross program income Total Gross program expenses Total I Net result t I Net I Assets 
Recurrent I Capital income Recurrent Capital expenses from recurrent Result 

Grants T Other T Grants Other I operations 
2015 I 2015 l 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015 I 2015 I 2015 I 2015 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

l_ ~~~-~~- ·~~:~ ._ ,,~. •. - .~ -_ --::i1:~ Jl~~ ~ : ,,~~ -~-~~-S -~(~1ii . ,~;in!~t?:··'~~.,·-
1------ - ---- -- - ·---- ·------ - -- ·- - -- ·--· 

12,065,527 3,570,615 2,079,882 17,716,024 12,509,290 338,714 12,848,004 3,126,852 4,868,020 125,807,583 
--- ·--···-···· · - ··· 194~874 ··-·- -~-·- --- . - -194,674" ·--1-55,900 ------ · --- -· . 1.55~966 ··---·38,968 · ··--38,968- -· ···- - -·- ·· 

· - - ·- · 449,3:25 80,7"5-9 · --· · · - - - 530,"084 ··-·459:178 ·- ------- ·- 459,178 · · - - (9,853) ·-· 70,96if ·---6 .672.991 

17,501,483 8,535,715 I 2,433,065 28,470,263 19,307,895 413,752 19,721,647 6,729,303 8,748,616 I 168,139,450 

Year ended 30 June 2014 
Functions Gross program income Total Gross program expenses Total Net result Net Assets 

I 

Recurring Capital income Recurring Capital expenses from recurring Result 
Grants Other Grants Other operations 
2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 2014 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

Corporate Governance . - - - . 517,424 - 517,424 (517,424) (517,424) -
- 1,834)26 . 

-- -··· .. ·- ,.- 1--- - ·-·-· ---------- ----- ---- --- -·· ··-------·- - - ---18,o1if -- . . --··- ----
-- 3,666~638 ·--·· 3.648,563- -- - . -

Administration & Finance 3,239,292 5,074,018 1,407,380 1,425,455 11,607,335 
----126,797 - · ·---·· . 

-65~419 
t-- . --·- --·· ,___. _ ____ .. . -·-- - =-=- - (76]'57) ------ - -- - --

(2,o43;6iij -- (1 ,90(595) • 19)23-,996 Community Services 272,137 464,353 2,442,605 2,365,948 
--- 176,423 -·23.160 - ·--· . ---- --- ---199;583 ------- -· --- · •. __.!. 

. 919:676 -· (7io,o93) ·-. c72o,093) ------- --
Environment aod Health 919,676 
Services 

- ---15~~62",657"" 
~---- -- -·· :;;- - ·oo:fo"Jf ··--- - · - 26~366]'34- - ··-·· ---·· --· f43~967 '"'29;226,306 - ""(3";6 18,236) .. ---,2.866:172) Engineering & Works 10,001,446 29,082,339 - ~~2~3,465 . r----- ---- t-- ··--- --·--. - --176,938 - ··-362,857 . ----362.857 {18-5;!Fi9) f--' (1B5.9f9) Waste Management 1,000 175,938 

------ -·-··-··- - ·--es9,269 ---- ---- - --- -----· 
- ·949,677 ·-·422.962. - ·-···--· - . ·-· 422,962 .. "236j(ii - ·· '526)15 . Water & Sewerage 290,408 8,358,425 

Infrastructure 
Total Council 17,601 ,603 14,371,242 1,257,858 - 33,230,703 35,155,243 85,385 35,240,628 (3, 182,398) (2,009,925) 138,443,221 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

3 Revenue analysis 

(a) Rates, levies and charges 
General rates 

Water 
Sewerage 
Garbage charges 
Total rates and utility charge revenue 
Less: Discounts 
Less: Pens;or.e~ remisSions 

(b) Fees and charges 
Other fees ar:d charges 

(c) Rental income 
Ott':er rentai incorr.e 

(d) Interest received 

Interest received from term deposits 
Interest from overdue rates and utility ci'arges 

(e) Sales revenue 
Sate of services 
Contract and recoverable wo~ks 

Note 
2015 

$ 

3,755,051 

241,746 
183.484 
210,763 

4,391 ,044 
(393,460) 

(16,848) 
3,980,736 

100.791 
100.791 

394,161 
394,161 

359,261 
27,279 

386,540 

3.560.927 
3,560,927 

2014 
$ 

3.096.779 
219,485 
190,284 
190,183 

3,696,731 
(330,425) 

(16,222) 
3,350.084 

38,::138 
38,038 

362.691 
362,691 

362,406 
14.372 

376 778 

10,184,944 
10,184,944 

The amount recognised as revenue for contract revenue during t"le financial year is the amount rece1vable in 
respect of !nvoices issued during the period. 

(f) Other Income 
Other income 

4 Grants, subsidies, contributions and donations 
(a) Recurrent 

Genera! purpose grants 
State government subs:dies and grants 
Contributions 

(b) Capital 
State government subsidies and grants 
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112,561 58,707 
112.561 58 707 

8,791.079 17,601.603 
8,560,404 

150,000 
~7.501.483 17,601 ,603 

2.433.065 1.257,858 
2,433,C65 1,257.858 



QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

5 Capitallncome 

Gain /loss on disposal of non-current assets 
Proceeds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 
Less: Book value of property, plant and equipment disposed of 

Proceeds from sale of land and improvements 
Less: Book value of land sold 

Total capital income 

6 Employee benefits 

Total staff wages and salaries 
Councillors' remuneration 
Annual, sick and long service leave entitlements 
Superannuation 

Other employee related expenses 

Less: Capitalised employee expenses 

Note 

22 

2015 
$ 

184,936 
(542,210) 
(357,274) 

(357,274) 

3,921 ,385 
245,172 
640,074 
507,404 

5,314,035 
247,099 

5,561,134 
(465,355) 

5,095,780 

2014 
$ 

240,682 
(398,902) 

(158,220) 

105,273 
(32,438) 
72,835 

{85,385) 

3,808,462 
205,191 
755,306 
498,159 

5,267,118 
222,831 

5,489,949 
(190,806) 

5,299,143 

Councillor remuneration represents salary, and other allowances paid in respect of carrying out their duties. 

Total Council employees at the reporting date: 
Elected members 
Administration staff 
Depot and outdoors staff 
Total full time equivalent employees 

7 Materials and services 

Advertising and marketing 
Administration services 
Audit services 

Audit of annual financial statements by the auditor general of 
Queensland 

Internal audit services provided by O'Regan & Partners 
Communications and IT 
Consultants/contractors 
Community Housing payout 
Community & Recreational Services 
Rentals - operating expenses 
Reooverable Works 
Road repair & reinstatement 
Town planning 
Other materials and services 
Rural Services 
Water Supply 
Sewerage Treatment 
Waste Management 
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2015 
5 

20 
46 
71 

8,115 
244,637 

43,150 
22,276 

162,336 
58,017 

211 ,302 
1,487,059 

229,483 
1,084,119 
5,442,443 

62,591 
1,580,818 

400,715 
122,021 
87,938 

216,881 
11,463,899 

2014 
5 

18 
42 
65 

96,290 

48,026 

193,258 
56,677 

240,451 
536,841 

77,341 

24,422,572 

1,646,036 

27,317,492 



QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 2014 
Note $ $ 

8 Finance costs 
Bank charges 5.834 5,984 

5 834 5,984 

9 Depreciation 

Depreciat ion of non-current assets 
FL;rniture & Fitt:11Qs 98,036 92 251 
Bu'ldings 713,296 774,501 
Piant and equipment 605,378 492,955 
Road, drainage and bridge ne:W<Xk 956,294 1,014,342 
Water 80.021 79,614 
Sewerage 80,582 76,962 
Other infrastructure assets 206,775 

15 2,742,362 2.532.625 

10 Capital expenses 

Revaluation decrement 
Revaluation down of property, piant and equipment where there is 
no credit balance to offset 

Total capital expenses 

11 Cash and cash equivalents 
Cash at bank ar~d on hand 
Term deposits 
Balance per Statement cf Cash Flows 

16 56,478 

56.478 

4,514,818 
10,448,442 
14 ,963,260 

2,492,748 
7,245.490 
9 738,238 

Councils cash a:1d cash equivalents are subject to a number of internal and external restrictions that limit 
amounts available for discretionary or future use. These indude: 

Exter'lally imposed expenditure restrictions at the reporting oate 
reiate to the following cash assets: 
Unspent government grants and subsidies 

•Internally imposed expenditure restr'ctions at the reporting date: 
Future capital w<Xks 
Future asset replacement 
Future constrained works 

Total unspent restricted cash 

352,831 

352,831 

126,600 

643,888 
177,297 
879,660 

1.827,445 

Cash and deposits are held in the National Australia Bank (NAB) & Rural Bank in ncrmal term deposits and 
business cr.eque accou'1ts. The NAB currently has a short term c~edit rating of A H and \eng term rating of M-
while Rural Bank has a short term rating of A2- and long term rating of BBB. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

12 Tl"iide and other receivables 

Current 
Rateable revenue and uUiity charges 
Other debtors 
Less impairment 
Loans and advances to community organisations 
Accrued Revenue 

Non-current 
Loans and advances to community organisations 

Note 
2015 2014 

$ $ 

385,248 287,347 
256,028 911,726 

(1,842) (5,000) 
3,750 

65,166 29,013 
708,349 1,223,086 

67,500 
67,500 

Interest is charged on outstanding rates at a rate of 11% per annum. No interest is charged on other debtors. 
There is no concentration of credit risk for rates and utility charges, fees and other debtors receivable. 

Loans relate to advances made to various sporting bodies. These loans arise from time to time and are 
subject to negotiated interest rates. The credit risk on these loans is considered low. 

Movement in accumulated impairment losses (other debtors) is as 
follows: 
Opening balance at 1 July 
Impairment Debts written off during the year 
Closing Balance at 30 June 

13 Inventories 

Inventories held for distribution 
Plant and equipment stores 
Total inventories 

14 Other financial assets 

Current 
Prepaid Expenses 
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5,000 
(3, 158) 

1,842 

399,405 
399,405 

67,261 
67,261 

5,000 

5,000 

478,857 
478,857 



15 Property, plant and equipment 

30/June/2015 

Basis of measurement 
Asset values 
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2014 
Additions 

Note 

Disposals 5 
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 19 

Revaluation adjustment to expense 

Transfers between classes 
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2015 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
Opening balance as at 1 July 2014 
Depreciation provided in period 
Depreciation on disposals 
Revaluation adjustment to asset revaluation surplus 

Transfers between classes 

Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2015 

Total written down value as at 30 June 2015 
Range of estimated useful life in years 

Work in progress 
Opening balance 1 July 2014 
Expenditure in year 
Transferred to Asset Register 
Closing Balance 30th June 2015 

Additions comprise: 

Renewals 
Other additions 
Total additions 

9 
5 
19 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Furniture & Buildings Plant and Road, drainage 
Fittings equipment and bridge 

Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value 
$ $ $ $ 

917,444 29,785,475 10,829,701 123,647,126 - ~------- . -914,616 - (076,133" ·· - 2]48,522 72,095 ··------· -----· --- - -- - - - -·-····-
__ @~~~! -- .--------- _ (1 ?_8J,0~3l - -······ --

(2,039, 121) 27,144,804 

Sewerage Water Land 

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value 
$ $ $ 

_5!~0-~718 ... 5_~25,262 1.490,631 
-- --71 ,596-908,392 ·- ---- . ···- - ·· - -- --

- ---. - --
{1,530,997) . - -(370:141) - 669-;iJ69 

·--- --- ·--·- - ---- . ------- ----- --· ----- - ·-·- ---- . - - - - (56,478) -
- - --· .. 

. (3,994,342) ---- ~ -- '"6.121 - - ·-- --(128,594) (1,602,195) (3,71 0,895) 63,787 -
857,500 24,666,628 9,016,556 149,729,557 4,078,030 6,169,634 2,231 ,296 

98,036 713,296 605,378 956,294 80,582-+ 80,021 
. ·--,2,745) . ----~ - -- '(744~873) -- ---. - . ·- -- -~- -
_ __ 2~?..859 __ t -1_0_ .91~:!_ 67 _?.375.:!26 ·r---~1_._031 !_985¥~,46_~!32~J- 2.318.284 

--·-- -- . ci 12,9Z8l -. ·---= -- -3.'214,804 ·c3so,164} 

·--- 41 :921l-f1:'26ifo94) - -·({319.332) __ _ (1 :o1s:924> - ·· ·3.319 
17,800 

-- -506 +--- --
364,071 1 9,710,041 1 4,916,5991 34,186,1591 1,158,0621 2,416,611 

- 167,155 - 2,811 914,072 354,307 
72,095 1,476,311 1,076,133 2,645,711 31,568 (5,680) (64,759) 

(72,095) (914,616) (1 ,076,1 33) (2,648,522) - (908,392) (71 ,596) 
- 728,850 - - 3_1,568 - 217,95~ ---- ---

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 

- 147,943 899,106 2,636,755 - -
72,095 1,328,368 177,02"7 8,956 31 ,568 {5,680) (64,759) 
"12,095 1,476,311 1,076,133 2,645,711 31 ,568 (5,680) (64,759) 
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Other 
Infrastructure 

Fair Value 
$ 

-
i;246,447 

- --- --· 
(6,166} 

t--·· --·--

·- - --- .. 
-

8,519,283 
9,753,564 

20~I!_5 
(6! 1~ 

Total 

$ 

117,897,357 ---- ···----
6,931,800 
~1.-296,694) 
-. 23,873,614 
--··-. 

(56,478) 
----- - -

(846,833) 
206,502,765 

52,332,646 
2,742,382 

_<!~~~~4) 
2,129,512 

2)93,31ot-·· (9o3,294-i 

2,795,919 I 55,547,462 

- 1,438,345 
1,240,447 6,471,825 

{1,240.44 7) (6,931,800) 

- 978,370 

$ $ 
293,924 3,977,728 
946,523 2,494,097 

1,240,447 6,471,825 



30/June/2014 

Basis of measurement 
Asset values 
Opening gross value as at 1 July 2013 
Additions 
Disposals 
Closing gross value as at 30 June 2014 

Accumulated depreciation and impairment 
Opening balance as at 1 July 2013 
Depreciation provided in period 
Depreciation on disposals 
Accumulated depreciation as at 30 June 2014 

Total written down value as at 30 June 2014 
Range of estimated useful life in years 

Wor1l in progress 
Opening balance 1 July 2013 
Expenditure in year 
Transferred to Asset Register 
Closing Balance 30 June 2014 

Additions comprise: 

Renewals 
Other additions 
Total additions 

Note 

5 

9 
5 

Furniture & 
Fittings 

Cost 
$ 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Buildings 

Fair Value 
$ 

Plant and 
equipment 

Cost 
$ 

Road, drainage 
and bridge 
Fair Value 

$ 

-=J~~~6k~i. --~~~:-~;~ -1-:=
1

-~~t~~~t-· _:~~:~~:::~~t 
- (76,636[ -- (740,252) -

917,4441 29,785.4751 10,829,701 I 123,647,126 

Sewerage I Water I Land 

Fair Value Fair Value Fair Value 
$ $ $ 

5,455,833 - --·~~6~?·~3.. 1,202,500 
----145.86s - ··----··-··· --

320,569 
- -··· - · --- . (32:438j - -

5,601,718 5,625,262 1,490,631 

- - ~-!~.:~~~=~-!o·i;~~~~j --
6

:~-~~:~~~~---j:~~~~~t ~~i~~-b -.
2

·
2

~~~~~a~=-:·-=--
- ~- (7,549) (410,437) 

226,8591 10,915,7671 6,375,426 I 31,031,985 I 1,464,325 I 2,318,284 

- 1,347,129 - 1,029,324 14,081 47,892 577,469 
288,028 873,012 1,000,628 1,601,927 131,804 866,180 97,407 

(288,028) (2,052,986) (1,000,628) {2,628,440) (145,885) - (320,569) 
167,155 - 2,811 - 914,072 354,307 

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ 
274,056 231,461 994,298 2,628,440 145,885 - -

13,972 1,821 ,525 6,330 - - - 320,569 
288,028 2,052,986 1,000,828 2,628,440 145,885 - 320,569 
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Other I 
Infrastructure 

Fair Value 

-----------. 
·-- -·· - -· 

-
-

-
-
-

$ 

-
-
-

Total 

$ 
172,310,147 

. . -6,436,536 
- - . . .. . ·-

(849,326) 
177,897,357 

50,218,007 
· 2,532.62ir 
·-(41 ?;986) 

52,332,646 

3,015,895 
4,858,986 

(6,436,536) 
1,438,345 

$ 
4,274,140 1 

2,162,396 
6,436,536 



16 Fair Value Measurements 

{i) Recognised fair value measurements 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Council measures and recognises the roi!owing assets at fair value on a reCl<rring basis: 

Property, piant and equipment 

- Counci: Land 

• Buildings 

- Road, drainage and bridge network 

Water Infrastructure 

Sewerage Infrastructure 

- Other Infrastructure Assets 

Counci! aoes not measure any iiabilities at fair vaiue on a recurr:ng basis, 

Ca;Jnci: has assets and liabilities which are not measured at fair value, but for which fair vai:;es are disclosed in other notes, 

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and trade payables are assumed to approximate their fair values due to their short-term natu~e (level 2), 

In accordance with AASB 13 fair value measurements are categorised ()(1 t'le following basis: 

- Fair value based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level1) 

Fair valt;e based on inputs that are directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability (level 2) 

Fair value based on unobservable inputs fer the asset and liability (ievel 3) 

The to: lowing table categorises fair value measurements as either !eve: 2 or level 3 in accordance with AASB 13. Council does not have any assets or liabi:ities 
measured a! fair vaiue which meet the criteria for categorisation as ievel 1. 

The fair values cf the assets are determined using va:uat!on !ech:1icues which maximise the use of observable data, where i! is available, ar:d minimise the use of 
entity specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an asset are observable, the asset is includea :n level 2. If one or more of the significant 
inputs is not based or. observable market data, the asset is included in level 3. This is the case for Council i:1frastructure assets. which are of a specialist nature 
for which there is no active market for similar cr identical assets. Tflese assets are va!ued using a combination of observable and ur.observable inputs. 

The table presents tr.e Counci:'s assets and tiabil;ties f:",easured and recognised at fair value at 30 June 2015. 

At 30 June 2015 Note Level2 Level 3 Total 

(Sig:·.:ficant other observable ;nputs) (Significant unobservable inputs) 

s $ $ 

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014 

Recurring fair value measurements 

Land 15 2,231,296 ~ .490 ,63~ 2,231,296 1,490,631 
Buildings 15 14,956,587 18,669,689 14.956,587 18,669,689 
Road, drainage and bridge network 15 115,543,398 92,615,140 115.543,398 92,615,140 
Water 15 3,753,023 3,306,979 3,753,023 3,306,979 
Sewerage 15 2,919,968 4, ~37,394 2,919,968 4,137,394 
Other Infrastructure 15 6,957,645 6,957,645 

2,231,296 1,490,631 137,172,976 118.929,202 139.404,272 120,419,833 

There were no transfers between levels during the year. 

Couoors policy is to recognise transfers in and out of the fair value hierarchy levels as at the ena of the reporting period. 

Council's land, buildings ard infrastructure assets were valued a! fair value with effect from 30 June 2015 by independent va!uers Assetval. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
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For the year ended 30 June 2015 

(ii) Valuation techniques used to derive fair values for level 2 and level 3 valuations 

Specific valuation techniques used to value Council assets comprise: 

Valuation Processes - land Assets (level 2) 

Land fair values were determined by independent valuer, Assetval, effective 30 June 2015. Level 2 valuation inputs were used to value land in freehold title as well 
as land used for special purposes, which is restricted in use under current zoning rules. Sales prices of comparable land sites in dose proximity are adjusted for 
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation aproach are price per square metre. 

Valuation Processes -Building Assets (level 3) 

Where there is an active and liquid market as evidenced by sales transactions of similar property types, the Market Approach by Direct Comparison, Income 
or Summation methods can be utilised, and is an accepted valuation methodology under AASB 13. If a Market Approach is adopted, the valuation is deemed to be 
a Level 2 input. 

Direct Comparison method involves the analysis af sales evidence and comparisons with the subject taking into account matters such as method of construction, 
size, condition and age. 

Due to the predominantly specialised nature of Local Government Assets, all infrastructure valuations have been undertaken on a Cost Approach (Deprecialed 
Replacement Cost) to valuation, an accepted valuation methodology under AASB13. The cost approach is deemed a Level 3 Input. Under this approach, 
the following process has been adopted: 

Where there is no depth of market as determined for the CoUllCil assets, the net current value of an asset is the gross current value less accumulated 
depreciation to reflect the consumed or expired service potential of the asset. Published/available market data for recent projects, and/or published cost 
guides are utilised to determine the estimated replacement cost (gross value} of the asset, including allowances for preliminaries and professional fees. This is 
considered a Level 2 input. 

A condition assessment is applied, which is based on factors such as the age of the asset, overall condition as noted by the valuer during inspection, economic 
and/or functional obsolescence. The condition assessment directly translates to the level of depreciation applied. 

While the replacement cost of the assets could be supported by market supplied evidence (level 2), the other unobservable inputs (such as estimates of 
residual value, useful life, and asset condition) were also required (level 3). 

To calculate the appropriate amount of accumulated depreciation, assets were either subject to a site inspection or an assessment to determine remaining useful 
life. Where site inspections were conducted (i.e. for sampled visible assets}, the assets were allocated a condition assessment, which was used to estimate 
remaining useful life as tabled below: 

Description Percentage of Life Remaining 

1. Brand new or rehabil itated to new with no visible deterioration 95% - 100% 

2 . Excellent overall, early signs of deterioration 55% -95% 

3. Fair overall condition, obvious deterioration, some servicability loss. 15% -55% 

4 . Poor overall condition, obvious deterioration, some serviceability loss, high maintenance costs 5% -15% 

5. Extremely poor condition, severe serviceability problems. Renewal required immediately 0% - 5% 

The valuation techniques used in the determination of fair values maximise the use of observable data where it is available and relies as l ittle as 
possible on entity specifics. The disclosure of valuation estimates is designed to provide users with an ins ight into the judgments that have been 
made in the determination of fair values. 
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Infrastructure (level 3) 

Calculation of Current Replacement Cost 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Infrastructure assets were componentised wnere required with unit rates app!ied to tt:e individual ocmpo:-~ents in order to determine the 
rep!acement cost. 

The unit rates app!ied are based on Greenfield project costs and include all materials. labour and overheads. These u!"lit rates are estimated :.~si ng information 
collated f~ similar recent projec~ ::csts, direct quotations ~rom suppliers unit rate databases, indices and Rawlinson's Constructior. HandboOK. 

Accum u Ia ted Depreciation 

An assessment of remaining useful life was made by tre valuer taking into consideration l.,e visual co!"ldition, constructior. date. evioence of 
recent repairs or capital works a:1d the surrounding envirOflmentai factors. 

Impact of Unobservable Inputs 

We have undertake!1 a sensitivity analysis to observe the impact of uncbservab:e inputs tc Fair Value. Our analysis is summarised in the 
following tables: 

Sig'liftcant Unobservale Input 
Number of Labour Hours 

Raw material usage quantities 

Condition Rating 

Remaining usefut Life 

Percentage of Assets Inspected 

Range of Input 

5-1 CO hr I m2 

Varies dependant of type and 
appiication 

1-5 as specified 

1-1 DO years 

Relationship of Input ;o Faor value 

The higher the labour hours, higher the Fair Va:ue 

The high the usage quantities. tne higher the Fair 
Vai:Je 

Tt:e lower the condition rating. the higher the Fair 

The !onge• the raining life. the nigher the Fair Value 

Ail accessible and idertifiable surface water and sewer infrastn.:cture were inspected. AI! sewer and water pipes and underground assets were 
not able to be visually inspected, as such these assets were valued pure:y off the data supplied to AssetVal by QSC. In addition a sample cf 
roads was visual:y inspected to verify ttJe data prcvided by QSC. This data was prepared by Proterra. the cicil engineering firm engaged by QSC 
to manage flood carnage works, an~ reviewed by Council engineering staff. 

Accumulated Depreciation 

An assessment of remaining usefulli~e was made by the valuer after inspection taking into consideration the visual condition, build date, 
evidence of nr...ent repairs or capitai works and the suf"ounding environmental factors. Where necessary, further guidance 0 :1 reT.a:ning life was 
sought from QSC operations staff. Some compocents of road infnastructure were assessed and determined to be non-depreciable such as road 
formation. 

Tr.e accumulated depreciation values calculated usi~g the depreciated replacement cost model were cross referenced and correiated with 
publicly available advertised sale prices of assets of a simi!ar age and condition. 

(iii) Valuation processes 

Counci;'s valuation pol•cies and procedures are set by the executive management team which comprises the Chief Executive Officer, Finaxe Manager and 
Director of Corporate Services. They are reviewed annually taking into consideration an analys:s of movements in fair value and other relevant information. 
Council's currer.t policy for t'le vai\Jation of property. plant and eauipmer.t (recurring fair value measurements) is set out in note 10. Non-re:::urring fair value 
measurements are made at the point of reclassification by a registered valuer. 
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17 Trade and other payables 

Current 
Creditors and accruals 
Annual leave 
Other entitlements 

18 Provisions 

Current 
Long service leave 

Non-current 
Long service leave 

Details of movements in provisions: 

Long service leave 
Balance at beginning of financial year 
Long service leave entitlement arising 
Long Service entitlement extinguished 
Long Service entitlement paid 
Balance at end of financial year 

19 Asset revaluation surplus 

Note 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 
$ 

2,045,809 
347,285 

2,393,094 

273,740 
273,740 

91 ,774 
91,774 

489,417 
106,135 
(60,941) 

(169,097) 
365,514 

Movements in the asset revaluation surplus were as follows: 
Balance at beginning of financial year 
Net adjustment to non-current assets at end of period to reflect a 
change in current fair value: 
land 
Buildings 
Road, drainage and bridge network 
Water 

Sewer 
Balance at end of financial year 

Land 
Buildings 
Road, drainage and bridge network 
Water 
Sewerage 

63,187,493 

669,069 
(1,326,192) 

23,929,999 
(387,941) 

(1 ,084,355) 
84,988,073 

1,205,352 
7,701 ,918 

75,032,657 
1,048,146 

84,988,073 

Page 25 

2014 
$ 

2 ,734,470 
371,414 

16,274 
3,122,158 

336,702 
336,702 

152,715 
152,715 

518,184 
107,067 
{10,586) 

(125,248) 
489,417 

63,187,493 

63,187,493 

536,283 
9,028,110 

51 ,102,658 
1,436,087 
1,084,355 

63,187,493 



20 Retained surplus/(deficiency) 
Movements in the retainea surp!;.JS were as foilows: 
Retained surp!us/(deficit) at begin,ing of financial yea· 
Net resuit attributable to Co:mcii 
Retained surplus at end of financial year 

21 Contingent liabilities 

Local Government Mutual 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 
$ 

71 ,644 i53 
8,748,616 

80,392.769 

2014 
$ 

73,654,079 
(2,009,926) 
?1,644, i53 

The Council is a member o' tt,e iocal government mutual liability self-insurance pool, LGM Queensland. In the event of the pool being wound up or it is unable to 
meet its debts as they fail due, the trust deed and rules provide that any accum:.~lated deficit wili be met by the individuai pool rr.embers in the same proportion as 
their contributicn :s to the total ~ool ccntributions in respect to any year that a deficit arises. 

The latest a"'dited financial statements for LGM are as at 30 June 2014 and shew accummulated member fu'lds (equity) of $26,013,447 

Local Government Workcare 
The Council is a member of the Queensland local government worker's compensation self-insurance scheme, Locai Gove!nment Workcare. Under this scheme 
The latest audited financial statements for LGW are as at 30 June 2C14 and shew accumulated member funds (equity) of $27,397.130 

22 Superannuation 
The Counci! con:r:butes to the Loca! Government Superannuation Scheme (Qid) (!ne scheme). The sc'1eme is a Multi-emp!oyer P;an as defined in the Australian 
Accounting Standard AASB 119 Employee Benefits . 

The Queensland Local Government Superannuation Board, the trustee o! the scheme. advised tl'.at the local government supera:1nuatio:"\ scheme was a 
complying superannuation scheme fo~ the purpose of the Comrr:onwealth Superannliation Industry (Supervision) legislation. 

The scheme has three elements referred to as: 
The City Defined Benefits Fund (CDBF) which covers former members of the City Super Defined Benefits Fund 
The Regional Defined Benefits Fund (Regional DBF) which covers defined benefit fur.-d members working fo~ regional local governments; and 

The Accumulation Be11efits Fund (ABF) 

The ABF is a defined ccntributio:1 scheme as defined in AASB ~ 19. Council has no l iability to or interest in the ABF c!her than the payment of the statutory 
contributions as required by the Local Government Act 2009 

Council does not have any emp!cyees who are members of the CDBF and, therefore. is net exposed to the obligatior.s, assets or costs associated with this fund. 

The Regional DBF is a defined benefrt plan as defined in AASB119. The Council is net able to account for the Regional DBF as a defined benefit plan in 
accordance with AASB 11 9 because ihe scheme is unable to account to !he Council for its proportionate share of the defined benefit obligation, plan assets and 
costs. The fundi "!Q pol;cy adopted in respect of the Regional DBF is directed at ensuring that the benefits accruing to members and bene'iciaries are fully funded 
as they fall due. 

To ensure the ongoing solvency of the Regioral DBF. the scheme's t•ustee can vary the rate of contributions from relevant local governr.1ent employers subject to 
advice from the scheme's actuary. As at the reporting date, nc changes had been made to prescribed employer contributions which remain at 12% of employee 
assets a;1d there are no known requirements to change the rate of contnbufons. 

Any amount by which the fund is over or under funded would o:1ly affect fut;.~re benefits and contributions to the Regional DBF, and is not an asset or liability of the 
Ccunci!. Accordingly there is no recognition in the financial statements of any over or under fundirg of the scheme. 

As at the re~orting date. the assets of the scheme are s;.;fficient to meet the vested benefits. 

The mos! recent actuarial assessment of the scheme was undertaken as at 1 Ju!y 20~ 2. The actuary indicated that "the Regional DBF is currently in a satisfactory 
bu: modest financial position a!)(! remains vulnerable to adverse short and r.1edium term experience." 

Following the previous actuarial assessment in 2009. counci!s were advised by the trustee of t~.e scheme, fol lowing advice from the scheme's actuary, that 
additional contributions may be imposeci in the future at a level necessary to protect the entitlements of Regional DBF members. In the 2012 actuarial report the 
actuary has recommended no change to the employer contribution levels at this time. 

Under the Locai Government Act 2009 the trustee of the scheme 1-)as the power to levy additional contributions on councils which have employees in the Regional 
DBF when the actuary advises such additional contributions are payable - normally when the assets of the DBF are insufficient to meet members' benefits. 

There are currently 71 entities contributing to the Regiona! DBF plan and any changes in contribution rates wouid apply equally tc all71 entities. Quilpie Shire 
Council made less than 4% of the Iota; contributions to the plan in the 2014-15 financial year. 

The next act~ariai investigation will be conducted as at 1 July 2015. 

The amount of S'-lpera~nuation contributions paid by Council to the 
scheme in this period for the benefit of employees was: 

2015 

$ 

507,404 
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2014 

$ 

498,159 



23 Trust funds 

Trust funds held for outside parties 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

2015 
$ 

Monies collected or held on behalf of other entities yet to be paid out 
to or on behalf of those entities 

2,740 

Security deposits 2,645 
5,385 

2014 
$ 

1,520 

2,565 
4,105 

The Council performs only a custodial role in respect of these monies. As these funds cannot be used by the Council, they 
are not brought to account in these financial statements. 

24 Reconciliation of net result for the year to net cuh Inflow (outflow) from operating activities 

Net result 
Non-cash items: 
Depreciation and amortisafion 
Revaluation adjustments 

lnvesti ng and development activities: 
Net (profit)lloss on disposal of non-current assets 
Capital grants and contributions 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities: 
(Increase)/ decnease in receivables 

(lncrease)/decnease in inventory 
Increase/( decrease} in payables 
Increase/( decrease) in other assets 
lncnease/(decrease) in other provisions 

Net cash inflow from operafing activities 

25 Events after the reporting period 

There were no material adjusting events after the balance date. 

8,748,616 

2,742,382 
56,478 

2,798,860 

357,274 
(2,433,065) 

(2,075,791) 

514,736 

79,452 
(729,064) 
(63,511) 

(123,903) 
(322,290) 

9,149,395 

(2,009,926) 

2,532,625 

2,532,625 

85,385 
(1,257,858) 

(1,172,473) 

2,036,478 

32,045 
400,765 
112,480 

(45,472) 
2,536,296 

1,886,522 

On the 29th June 2015 the COmmonwealth Government announced the resumption of the prectice of paying an amount 
equal to half of the previous years FAGS in the previous year (i.e. in 2014-2015) as an advance payment on 2015-2016. 

The actual payment was made by the Commonwealth to the Grants Commission on 3oth June 2015 but was not received by 
QSC until July. 

Accordingly, there was no impact on Council in the 14-15 year. Depending on future action by the Australian Government, 
there could be an impact on future years. 
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26 Financial instruments 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Qui:pie Shi!'e Cooncil has exposure to the following risks arising from finan::ial lnstrumer.ts: 
-credit risk 
- liqcidity risk 
-market "'SK 

This note provides ir:formatio:-~ (both qual,tative and quantitative) to assist statement users evaluate the significance of financial 
instrcrr.ents on the Council's financia: position and financial performance. indud!r.g the na!ure a:1d extent of nsks and how the Council 
manages these exposu~es. 

Financial risk management 
Quilpie Shire Council is responsible for the establishment and oversight of the risk management framework. togetfJer with developing 
and monitoring risk :nanagernent oolicies. 
Council's management approves policies for overall risk management, as well as specifically for managing credit, !iquidity and market 
risk. 

The Council's risk management policies are estabiished to identify and analyse the risks faced, to set appropriate l imits ar:d controls 
and to monitor these risks and ad~ererce against limits. The Council aims to manage volatility to minimise potential adverse effects or. 
the financial performa11ce of the Council . 

Qui!pie Shire Council does not enter into derivatives. 

Credit risk 
Credit risk ls the risk of financia! loss if a counterparty to a financiai instrt.:l"1ent fai!s to meet its contractual obligations. These 
obligations arise pnncipal!y from the Council's investments and receivab:es from customers. 

Exposure to credit risk is manageo through regular analysis of credit cour.terparty ability to meet payment obligations. The carrying 
amount of financial assets represents the max1mum credit exposure. 

Investments in financial instrumer.ts are required to be made with Queensland Treasury Corporation (QTC} or similar state/ 
commonweaith bodies or financial ir.stitutions in Australia, in tine with the requi~ements of the Sta,tuloty Bodies Financial 
Arrangements Act 1982. 

No col!ateral is held as security re1ating to the financial assets held by Quilpie Shire Counc!i. 

The following tabie ;epresents the maximum exposure to credit risk based on the carrying a~n!s of fi:-~ancia ! assets at the end of the 
reporting period: 

Note 2015 2014 
Financial assets $ $ 

Cash and cash equivalents 11 14,963,260 9,738,238 
Receivables - rates 12 385,248 287,347 
Receivables - other 12 325.435 906,726 

Total financial assets 15,673,943 ~0.932,311 
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Cash and cash equivalents 

QUJLPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

The Council may be exposed to credit risk through its investments with NAB and Rural Bank. The likelihood of the counterparty having 
capacity to meet its financial commitments is strong. 

Trade and other receivables 
In the case of rate receivables, the Council has the power to sell the property to recover any defaulted amounts. In effect this power 
protects the Council against credit risk in the case of defaults. 

In other cases, the Council assesses the credit risk before providing goods or services and applies normal business credit protection 
procedures to minimise the risk. 
By the nature of the Councils operations, there is a geographical concentration of riSk in the Council's area. Because the area is 
largely agricultural with a large oil & gas industry, there is also a concentration in the agricultural & mining sector. 

Ageing of past due receivables and the amount of any impairment is disclosed in the following table: 

2015 2014 
$ $ 

Not past due 695,979 1,179,873 
Past due 31-60 days 13,456 13,000 
Past due 61-90 days 1,248 1,200 
More than 90 days 0 0 
Impaired 0 0 
Total 710,683 1 '194,073 

Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Council will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset 

Quilpie Shire Council is exposed to liquidity risk through its normal course of business. 
The Council manages its expciSure to liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash deposits, both short and long term, to cater fur 
unexpected volatility in cash flows. 

The following table sets out the liquidity risk in relation to financial liabilities held by the Council. 

0 to 1 year 1 to 5 years OverS years Total Carrying 
contractual amount 
cash flows 

$ $ $ $ $ 
2015 
Trade and other payables 2,393,094 0 0 2,393,094 2,393,094 

2,393,094 0 0 2,393,094 2,393,094 
2014 

Trade and other payables 3,122,158 0 0 3,122,158 3,122,158 
3,122,158 0 0 3, 122,158 3,122,158 

The outfiows in the above table are not expected to oocur significantly earlier or for significant ly different amounts than indicated in the 
table. 
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Market risk 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Notes to the financial statements 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Market risk is the risk that changes ir: r.1arket prices, such as interest rates, wil: affect tne Council's income or the vai·Je of its holdings 
of financial instruments. 

Interest race risk 
Quiipie Shire Council is exposed to ir:terest rate risil ttlrough investments with NAB and Rurai Bank 
The Council has access to a m:x of variable ar.d fixed rate funding options thrm;gh QTC so that interest rate risk exposlire can be 
minimised. 

Sensitivity 
Sensitivity to interest rate moverr.ents is shown for variable fi nanc'al assets and liabilities based on the carrying amount at reporting 
date. 
The fo!lowing interest rate sensitivity analysis dep;cts what effect a reasonably possible change in interest rates (ass;.~med to be 1 %) 
would have on the Net Result a".d equity, based on the carrying vaiues at tne end of the rePOrting period. The calculation assumes that 
the chal"'ge in •rterest rates wouid be heid constant over the period. 

Net carrying Effect on Net Result Effect on Equity 
amount 1% increase 1% decrease 1% increase 1% decrease 

Council $ $ $ $ $ 
2015 
NAB Deposits 12,839,316 128,393 (128,393) 128,393 (128,393) 
Rura: Bank 2 123,644 21,236 (21.236) 21 ,236 (21.236) 
Net total 14.962.960 '149.630 (149,630) 149,630 (149,630; 
2014 
NAB Deposits 9,969,570 99,696 (99,696) 99,696 (99,696) 
Net total 9,969,570 99.696 (99.696) 99.696 (99,696) 

Fair va lue 
The fair value of trade and o!he~ receivabies and payables is ass;.~med to approximate the value of the anginal transactio:1 , !ess any 
ailowance for impairment. 
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QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Financial statements 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

Management Certificate 
For the year ended 30 June 2015 

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared pursuant to sections 176 and 177 of the 
Local Government Regulation 2012 (the Regulation) and other prescribed requirements. 

In accordance with section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that: 

(i) the prescribed requirements of the Local Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 
2012 for the establishment and keeping of accounts have been complied with in all material respects; 
and 

(ii) the general purpose financial statements, as set out on pages 1 to 30, present a true and fair view, in 
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards, of the Council's transactions for the financial year 
and financial position at the end of the year. 

-.--- r v c::: { \ _ 
Chief Executive Officer , 

Dave Burges • 
Mayor 
Cr Stuart Mackenzie 
28-01-2016 28-01·2016 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Quilpie Shire Council 

Report on the Financial Report 

I have audited the accompanying financial report of Quilpie Shire Council, which comprises 
the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2015, the statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, notes 
comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, 
and certificates given by the Mayor and the Chief Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Financial Report 

The Council is responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair 
view in accordance with prescribed accounting requirements identified in the Local 
Government Act 2009 and Local Government Regulation 2012, including compliance with 
Australian Accounting Standards. The Council's responsibility also includes such internal 
control as the Council determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report 
that gives a true and fair view and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on the audit. The audit 
was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of Queensland Auditing Standards, 
which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those standards require compliance 
with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and that the audit is planned 
and performed to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report is free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the f(nancial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's 
judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers 
internal control relevant to the entity's preparation of the financial report that gives a true and 
fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not 
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control, 
other than in expressing an opinion on compliance with prescribed requirements. An audit 
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial report. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 
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Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public se.ctor entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant. 

Opinion 

In accordance with s.40 of the Auditor-General Act 2009-

(a) I have received all the information and explanations which I have required; and 

(b) in my opinion-

(i) the prescribed requirements in relation to the establishment and keeping of 
accounts have been complied with in all material respects; and 

(ii) the financial report presents a true and fair view, in accordance with the prescribed 
accounting standards, of the financial performance and cash flows of the Quilpie 
Shire Council for the financial year 1 July 2014 to 30 June 2015 and of the financial 
position as at the end of that year. 

Other Matters • Electronic Presentation of the Audited Financial Report 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of these financial statements should note that audit 
does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and 
does not provide an opinion on any information which may be hyperlinked to or from the 
financial statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks 
arising from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy 
of the audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented 
information. 

0 ,.<)Jo < 
DASTO~CPA 
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 
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Measures of Financial Sustainability 

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL 
Current-year Financial Sustainabillty Statement 

For the year ended 30 June 2015 

How the measure is calculated Actual - Council Target 

Council's performance at 30 June 2015 against key financial ratios and targets: 

Operating surplus ratio 

Asset sustainability ratio 

Net financial liabilities ratio 

Net result (excluding capital items) 
divided by total operating revenue 
(excluding capital items) 
Capital expenditure on the 
replacement of infrastructure 
assets (renewals) divided by 
depreciation expense. 
Total liabilities less current assets 
divided by total operating revenue 
(excluding capital items) 

26% Between 0% 
and 10% 

151% greater than 
90% 

-51% not greater 
than 60% 

Note 1 - Basis of Preparation 

The current year financial sustainability statement is a special purpose statement prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Regulation 2012 
and the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013. The amounts used to calculate the three reported measures are prepared on an accrual basis and are drawn 
from the Council's audited general purpose financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015. 

Certificate of Accuracy 
For 

This current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 {the regulation). 

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this current-year financial sustainability statement has been accurately calculated. 

A(, I {1 -D ~ n-.::- It\....~~ ~/'- J c-.;; b I 
Mayor Chief Executive Office•{.; 

Stuart Mackenzie Dave Burges · 

Date: 28-01-1 6 Date: 28-01-16 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Mayor of Quilpie Shire Council 

Report on the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement 

I have audited the accompanying current-year financial sustainability statement, which is a 
special purpose financial report of Quilpie Shire Council for the year ended 30 June 2015, 
comprising the statement and explanatory notes, and certificates given by the Mayor and Chief 
Executive Officer. 

The Council's Responsibility for the Current-Year Financial Sustainability Statement 

The Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the current-year 
financial sustainability statement in accordance with the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
The Council's responsibility also includes such internal control as the Council determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of the statement that is accurately 
calculated and is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

My responsibility is to express an opinion on the current-yearfinancial sustainability statement 
based on the audit. The audit was conducted in accordance with the Auditor-General of 
Queensland Auditing Standards, which incorporate the Australian Auditing Standards. Those 
standards require compliance with relevant ethical requirements relating to audit 
engagements and that the audit is planned and performed to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the statement is free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amo.unts and 
disclosures in the statement. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, 
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the statement, whether due 
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control 
relevant to the Council's preparation and fair presentation of the statement in order to design 
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council's internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 
of accounting estimates made by the Council, as well as evaluating the overall presentation 
of the statement. 

My responsibility is to form an opinion as to whether the statement has been accurately 
calculated based on the Council 's general purpose financial report. My responsibility does not 
extend to forming an opinion on the appropriateness or relevance of the reported ratios, nor 
on the Council's future sustainability. 

I believe that the audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
my audit opinion. 
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Independence 

The Auditor-General Act 2009 promotes the independence of the Auditor-General and all 
authorised auditors. The Auditor-General is the auditor of all Queensland public sector entities 
and can be removed only by Parliament. 

The Auditor-General may conduct an audit in any way considered appropriate and is not 
subject to direction by any person about the way in which audit powers are to be exercised. 
The Auditor-General has for the purposes of conducting an audit, access to all documents and 
property and can report to Parliament matters which in the Auditor-General's opinion are 
significant. 

Opinion 

In accordance with s.212 of the Local Government Regulation 2012, in my opinion, in all 
material respects , the current-year financial sustainability statement of Quilpie Shire Council, 
for the year ended 30 June 2015, has been accurately calculated. 

Emphasis of Matter- Basis of Accounting 

Without modifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 1 which describes the basis of 
accounting. The current-year financial sustainability statement has been prepared in 
accordance with the Financial Management (Sustainability) Guideline 2013 for the purpose of 
fulfilling the Council's reporting responsibilities under the Local Government Regulation 2012. 
As a result, the statement may not be suitable for another purpose. 

Other Matters - Electronic Presentation of tlhe Audited Stateme.nt 

Those viewing an electronic presentation of this special purpose financial report should note that 
audit does not provide assurance on the integrity of the information presented electronically and 
does not provide an opinion on any information w.hich may be hyperlinked to or from the financial 
statements. If users of the financial statements are concerned with the inherent risks arising 
from electronic presentation of information, they are advised to refer to the printed copy of the 
audited financial statements to confirm the accuracy of this electronically presented information. 

;(), 4to{· 
D A STOL.~f,tPA 
(as Delegate of the Auditor-General of Queensland) 

Queensland Audit Office 
Brisbane 
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Measure Target Actuals at 30 
June 2015

30 June 2016 31 June 2017 31 June 2018 30 June 2019 30 June 2020 30 June 2021 30 June 2022 30 June 2023 30 June 2024

Operating surplus ratio Net result divided by total operating 
revenue

Between 0% 
and 10%

26% -10.50% 3.40% 3.30% 2.30% 1.60% 2.10% 3.40% 7.00% 6.40%

Asset sustainability ratio Capital expenditure on the 
replacement of assets (renewals) 
divided by depreciation expense.

greater than 
90%

151% 170% 125% 89% 66% 54% 58% 54% 60% 124%

Net financial liabilities ratio Total liabilities less current assets 
divided by total operating revenue

not greater 
than 60%

-51% -28% -40% -42% -52% -58% -72% -88% -107% -93%

Cr Stuart Mackenzie
Mayor

Date: 28-01-16

QUILPIE SHIRE COUNCIL
Long-Term Financial Sustainability Statement

Prepared as at 30 June 2015
Projected for the years ended

In accordance with Section 212(5) of the Regulation we certify that this long-term financial sustainability statement has been accurately calculated.

Certificate of Accuracy
For the long-term financial sustainability statement prepared as at 30 June 2015

This long-term financial sustainability statement has been prepared pursuant to Section 178 of the Local Government Regulation 2012 (the regulation).

Date: 28-01-16

Measures of Financial Sustainability

Quilpie Shire Council's Financial Management Strategy

Council measures revenue and expenditure trends over time as a guide to future requirements and to make decisions about the efficient allocation of resources to ensure the 
most effective provision of services. Council ensures that its financial management strategy is prudent and that its long-term financial forecast shows a sound financial position 
whilst also being able to meet the community’s current and future needs.

Council

Chief Executive Officer
Dave Burges
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